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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL {IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The J. G. McDonald Chocolate Company Building is a four-story brick and stone
factory and office structure with a split-level entrance and raised basement. The
building has a post and beam structural system with a single row of posts running
the length of the building at midspan.

The symmetrical facade combines elements of the Commercial and Sullivanesque
styles and is four bays wide. The bays are separated by brick piers which culminate
in Roman arches at the third floor level. Each level of the facade has its own
unique type of fenestration. On all but the third level, however, the bays are
square. The first floor bays contain large fixed-sash storefront windows. The
second floor has a row.of 2 over 2 double-hung sash windows with fixed sash transoms
above. The windows on the third floor are contained by the arches and have a central
1 over 1 sash window flanked on either side by 2 over 2 double-hung sash windows.

In the arched area of the bay are quadrapartite window lights held in place by heavy
wooden mullions. The fourth floor, which was added about 1909, contains a row of
eight small 1 over 1 double-hung sash windows with sills which rest on the cornice
line of the original facade.

The facade benefits from detailing which relieves what could otherwise have been
an austere composition. Ornamental features include several dentil bands, the
letter "M'" in brick relief at the tops of the outer piers, classical wooden mouldings,
and a modest amount of corbeled brickwork. The above detalllng has a minor 1mpact
on the flat surfaces and clean lines of this early modern factory.

The side elevations have a tall coursed rubble rock foundation supporting the
brick superstructure. The brick is laid in a common or American Bond pattern with
five stretcher courses to every header course. Windows are segmentally arched, and
contain 2 over.2 double-hung sashes. Some of the original bays have been fllled in,
enlarged or have had the wooden sashes ‘replaced with metal frames.

The original,building was three stories tall, excluding the elevated basement.

A fourth story was added about 1909 and featured a roof garden and a tower which served
as a vestibule. The fenestrated tower located over the east wall. of the original
building is still extant.

- Additions were made to the rear of the original factory as the business rapldly
expanded after 1901.

The first of the three major additions is four stories tall, including the
basement. The style, brickwook and window types of this addltlon are identical
to that found in the original building.

The second addition is much the same as the first and was built in 1920 using
"fireplace construction." It has large square window bays and is void of detailing.
The sills and lintels are concrete. Structurally there are two rows of concrete
posts running through the building at one-third spans.

A one-story brick loading dock and boiler room have been added to the rear of
‘the last addition and are immediately adjacent to the railroad spur which runs
directly south of the huilding. _

The original front facade remains largely intact, although some alterations have
‘been made. The original exterior stairs leading to the entrance have been moved
‘inside and the basement window wells have been filled in. The original polychrome
facade has been painted white. The original projecting cornice over the third
floor was removed when the fourth floor was added.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The J. G. McDonald Chocolate Company Building, built in 1901, is significant
for its pioneering role in the development of Utah's candy manufacturing industry,
and honors one of Salt Lake City's more prominent businessmen, James G. McDonald.

The McDonald Candy Co. business originated with John T. McDonald, who sold salt
water taffy from saddlebags on horseback. He was one of Utah's first merchants and
eventually operated a wholesale and retail grocery and confectionery business which
was founded in 1863. -

James G. McDonald, one of several sons, took over his father's business at the
age of eighteen. By this time various types of candy were being produced as the
railroads had reached Utah and sugar became available, replacing the pioneer staple
of sorghum molasses. Heretofore salt water taffy was the only kind of candy made
under the McDonald label.

In 1912 the company began to specialize in boxed chocolates and cocoa, and the
company name was changed to the James G. McDonald Chocolate Company. It was the
beginning of a "new Utah industry' on a large scale production level.

James G. McDonald was a promoter of home manufacturing and developed a chocoldte
drink intended to supplant the "injurious use of tea and coffee.'" He was also
recognized as the "first to place a five cent candy bar on the market' and his
practice of using the roof of his factory as a roof garden and refectory for his
employees was adopted by other American factories.

The company became world-renowned and was the recipient of over forty-four gold
medals and awards, including the highest international award possible, the ''Grand
Prix for eyxcellence and quality." McDonald was a member of the jury of honor at
the world's fairs for several years.

- James G. McDonald was born in Salt Lake City and was an active member of the
Mormon Church, having served in several leadership positions.

During his lifetime he was senior director of the Utah State National Bank,
director of Heber J. Grant and Company, president of the Utah State Fair Association,
vice-president of the Salt Lake City Chamber of Commerce, president of the
Traffic Service Bureau and organized the Salt Lake Real Estate Association. He
was also one of the organizers of the Utah Association of Credit Men, the Utah
Manufacturers Association, and director of the Salvation Army board. During the
Roosevelt administration McDonald was the government superv1sor for confectioners
under the N.R.A. (National Recovery Act) ‘ , : :
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